
 
 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Community Redevelopment Agency 

 
 

Tuesday, May 12, 2015 
 
 
Call To Order and Roll Call 

6:30 PM 

 
The meeting was called to order on the above date by Chair Robb at 6:30 p.m. in t h e  C i t y  Commission 
Chambers, City Hall, Deerfield Beach, Florida. 

Present:    5 - 
 
 
 
 
 

Also Present:    3 - 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Ms. Gloria Battle 
Mr. Joseph Miller 
Mr. Richard Rosenzweig 
Vice Chair Bill Ganz 
Chair Jean Robb 
City Manager Burgess Hanson 
City Attorney Andrew Maurodis 
Assistant to the City Clerk Heather Montemayor 

 
MOTION was made by Mr. Rosenzweig and seconded by Ms. Battle to approve the April 14, 2015 CRA minutes as 
submitted. 

 
Yeas: 

 

5 -   Ms. Gloria Battle, Mr. Joseph Miller, Mr. Richard Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Bill Ganz 
and Chair Jean Robb 

 

Nays: 0 
 
 
GENERAL ITEMS 

 
 

1. Presentation regarding the implementation of a district wayfinding system* 
 

Kris Mory, CRA Director, said the wayfinding program was first introduced in February; whereas, the Board 
was in agreement with the program and the locations, but r e q u e s t e d  m o r e  d e s i g n  options. Ms. 
Mory displayed a PowerPoint presentation of various options and explained h o w  different color 
combinations can be incorporated into the original sign; h o w e v e r , the poles will remain the same 
since they were used for the parking meters. Further, after t h e  w a y f i n d i n g  program was 
introduced, the beach monument sign was completed and was well received; thus, they incorporated 
elements of the beach monument sign into the wayfinding program. Thereafter, Ms. Mory highlighted 
different sign options, which included actual surfboards.  She said the signs  would be about eight (8) 
feet high and would show more of the pole. Thereafter, Ms. Mory discussed the third option as being 
simple and less expensive to implement and explained that the design would entail the basic surfboard 
outline, which would include arrows pointing t o  the different directions. 

City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 1  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 

Lastly, Mr. Mory asked for direction on the design and project implementation. 
 
 

Mr. Rosenzweig stated that he likes the design on the far right with the surfboards. 
 
 

Vice Chair Ganz stated that he preferred the design on the right side of t h e  first slide.  He explained 
that the sign  stands  out,  it  is  easier  to  read  and  incorporates  the  City's  colors.  Further, he stated 
that he would like to pass on the surfboards. 

 
Chair Robb agreed, as she likes the yellow sign design with the City's logo incorporated into it. 

 
 

Mr. Miller said he feels it is  an improvement; however, he agrees wi th Mr. Rosenzweig, as the  
sign on the beach with the surfboard is extremely popular. 

 
Vice Chair Ganz said the sign design with  the  surfboard  has  the  sun  coming  out  of  the  water, 
which is now coming up from the left of the sign; whereas, he feels it does not match nor capture 
what it is supposed to do. Further, he stated that the yellow design is m o r e  t r a d i t i o n a l .  He 
explained that the surfboards  are  very  popular  down  at  the  beach;  however,  the  surfboards  on the 
poles are too big. 

 
Ms. Mory explained that the issue with the surfboards might be the longer pole, as they might start 
looking like oars instead of surfboards. 

 
Chair Robb said the yellow design is easier to read; whereas, the o t h e r  d e s i g n s  a r e  m o r e  
difficult. 

 
In reference to the yellow sign design the rectangles at the Cove, Sullivan Park and the beach, Mr. 
Miller asked if they could  include  the  rectangles  into  the  shape  of  a  surfboard  on  the  same  sign 
and lose the sun. 

 
Burgess Hanson, City Manager, replied that he believes  if  they  use  the  surfboards  it  will  look  too 
busy. 

 
Following the motion, it was the consensus of the Board to move forward with t h e  w a y f i n d i n g  
program. 

 
MOTION   was   made   by   Vice   Chair   Ganz   and   seconded   by   Ms.   Battle to  approve the yellow sign 
design. 

 
Yeas: 

 

5 -   Ms. Gloria Battle, Mr. Joseph Miller, Mr. Richard Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Bill Ganz 
and Chair Jean Robb 

 

Nays: 0 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 2  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 

2. Discussion regarding SE 15th Avenue Buoy 
 

Kris Mory, CRA Director, said at the last meeting there was discussion, as well as public input, on 
the SE 15th Avenue buoy. Ms. Mory displayed photographs o f  t h e  b u o y  l o c a t e d  a t  t h e  C o v e , 
which was in place next to the entryway feature. It was previously suggested to paint the buoy 
mostly white with one (1) accent color, instead of four (4); and found that the white with the blue accent 
color is a navigational buoy. She continued displaying the different buoys which included a National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) weather buoy, a n d  a  m o o r i n g  b u o y , which is 
used for boat parking. She noted that all of the buoys are recognized by the U .S. CoastGuard. Ms. 
Mory explained that they  did  a  mockup  of  the  buoy  with  the  white  base  and  a blue stripe around the 
top; all  of  the  buoys  are  lit  as  well.  Staff also considered adding the City logo to the buoys, which 
is also included in the mock up; however, the gold and teal clash with the blue, so she suggested the 
logo in plain black or using the buck. 

 
Continuing, Ms. Mory explained that this request is not only in regard to the buoys  in  the  Cove 
Shopping Center, but closing out the SE 15th  Avenue  contract;  whereby,  NBR  Construction,  has 
been waiting four (4) months to close  out  the  contract.  As  of  now,  the  contract  requires  them  to 
paint the buoy in the roundabout using the pastel colors;  however  Staff  has  postponed  it  until 
further  direction.  Ms. Mory  outlined  the  options: 1)  allowing  the  contractor  to  complete  their contract, 
which means painting the buoy in  pastel  colors; 2)  take  the  proposal  of  demolishing  the buoy and 
removing it entirely, at a cost of $1,500.00; 3) paint the buoy the alternate color that was presented 
tonight,  which  would  cost  more  because  of  the  graffiti  proof  paint  and  would  also  have to go 
before the Community Appearance Board (CAB); or 4) install a standard Deerfield Beach Cove monument 
sign presently used throughout the City. 

 
Lastly, Ms. Mory asked for direction on moving forward and closing out the 15th Avenue Project. 

 
 

Vice Chair Ganz said he prefers the white with blue accent; however, he does not agree with the teal/beige 
(s/b gold) logo. Further, he said the  color  of  the  shutters  on  top  of  the  pavilion  at  the Cove are 
fairly close to the blue that was shown tonight on the buoy and asked that the same blue be used 
instead of having two (2) contrasting ones. 

 
Ms. Mory stated that the two (2) blues are meant to be identical. 

 
 

Vice Chair Ganz  said  he  agrees  with  using  the  same  blue  and  suggested  adding  another  stripe 
on the bottom to make it look similar to the other navigational buoys, i .e. the weathered buoy that 
was shown. He also stated that if the logo is going to be added, he doesn't agree with using the 
teal/gold colors. Lastly, Vice Chair Ganz  said  the  buoy  at  15th  Street  (s/b  Avenue)  does  not  fit 
and suggested that it be removed; however, he does  not  feel  a  Cove  entrance  sign  would  fit 
either, as he feels we will be adding something the same exact size of the buoy. 

 
Ms. Battle said her concern is  bringing  cohesiveness  to  the  City,  as  she  likes  the  monument  signs 
that are located throughout the City. She believes that something similar should be done at the  
Cove. Further, she agreed with removing the buoy; however, she suggested replacing it with the 
monument sign. 

City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 3  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 
Mr. Miller said he has received  different  responses  from  residents  in  regard  to  the  buoy; 
nonetheless, he asked if there was a consensus on the buoy colors presented tonight. 

 
The Board replied yes. 

 
 

Continuing, Mr. Miller stated that he realizes this discussion is to finish the SE 15th Avenue project; 
however, if one (1) buoy is changed, they all should be. 

 
Ms. Mory said NBR can be directed to  paint  the  buoy  any  color  that  is  chosen,  as  we  are  still 
under contract. She suggested painting the SE 15th Avenue buoy the color scheme that was 
presented tonight and leave it for a period of time, i .e. one (1) month; whereby, at the end of the 
month, the Board can decide whether to demolish it or not .Additionally,  the  multi-color  buoy  is 
located at SE 15th  Avenue  because  it  was  built  as  part  of  the  Cove  Shopping  Center  and  they 
did not want it destroyed. If the  Board  decides to  paint  one  (1),  it  would  give  people  an  idea  of 
what they would look like; notwithstanding, if  the Board decides to demolish the buoy, it could be done 
next week. 

 
Mr. Rosenzweig agreed with Ms. Mory's idea of painting the one (1) at SE 15th Avenue first. 

 
 

Mr. Miller agreed, as the contractor can finish out his contract and they can have an idea of what 
the buoy would look like with the color presented tonight. He s u g g e s t e d  p a i n t i n g  t h e  S E  15th 
Avenue buoy now and decide later if they want to move forward with the buoys at the Cove. 

 
It was the consensus of the Board to add the blue stripe at the bottom of the buoy as well. 

 
 

Vice Chair Ganz said the multi-color buoys at the Cove need to be modified a n d  s u g g e s t e d  
changing them all to white with the blue stripes. He stated that  he  would  like  to  see  the  SE  15th 
Avenue buoy demolished; however, if the Board decides to keep that buoy, he  would  like  it 
changed to white with the blue stripes. 

 
It was the consensus of the Board to paint all of the buoys with the graffiti proof paint. 

 
 

Mr. Rosenzweig suggested repainting all of the balls at the beach, as he has noticed the paint is starting to 
peel. 

 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Rosenzweig to paint all of the buoys white with the blue stripes 
using graffiti proof paint, starting with 15th Avenue. 

 
Yeas: 

 

5 -   Ms. Gloria Battle, Mr. Joseph Miller, Mr. Richard Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Bill Ganz 
and Chair Jean Robb 

 

Nays: 0 
 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 4  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 
 

3. Request for CRA Board direction regarding State Road A1A project upgrades* 
 

Kris Mory, CRA Director, said the State Road A1A resurfacing project consists of drainage, new  
roadway surfaces, bike lanes and sidewalks, and is se t  to  beg in  i n  Sep tember  2 0 1 5 . Staff has 
been following the design process,  making  comments  on  the  plans  and  has  been  very  successful 
with the add-ons; however there were three (3) suggestions that were  not  incorporated  into  the 
project. Nevertheless, they  can  be  included;  FDOT  will  install  them,  but  the  CRA  will  have  to  pay 
for them and maintain them. 

 
Thereafter, Ms. Mory displayed a current photograph of A1A, along the beach that showed no 
landscaping, other than sod. She also provided a photograph o f  t h e  l e v e l  o f  l a n d s c a p i n g  t h a t  
FDOT would like to add.  She continued outlining the comparisons,   which   included a    grassy swale, 
ground cover and trees.  She explained that there are no palm trees, but Staff has recommended they be 
added if the landscape option is chosen. Further, Ms. Mory stated that the landscaping will provide a 
buffer for pedestrians on the sidewalk f r o m  t h e  t r a f f i c , a s  w e l l  a s  shade, aesthetics, etc.  The  
trees  recommended  for  the  project  will  include  sabal  palms, alexander  palms  or  crepe  myrtle  
trees.  She stated that Harold Hoyte, Landscape Architect, created a design, which Ms. Mory 
provided, that shows how much green could be accomplished on the corridor. Ms. Mory stated 
that this landscape project includes fourteen  (14) city  blocks; thus, a mixture  of  palm  trees,  hardwood  
trees  and  ground  cover  may  cost  $ 500,000 installed  due to  the  length  of  the  area.  She  said  if  
sod  is  included,  it  will  cut  the  cost  of  the  project  down  by $100,000-$200,000 depending on  which  
design  is  chosen.  Further, Ms. Mory sa id  the exact  cos t  is unknown, but the public desires it be 
done. 

 
Continuing, Ms. Mory stated that the next item is sidewalks, as there w e r e  t w o  (2) p e d e s t r i a n  
fatalities in this area this past year; therefore, Staff is i n ves t i ga t i ng  ways  to  i m p ro ve  
pe des t r i a n  safety. Thereafter, Ms. Mory displayed photographs of a textured t r e a t m e n t  i n  t h e  
c r o s s w a l k s , which is something that can be laid down and flushed in the asphalt. This  treatment  
will  further delineate the crosswalk, making it safer for pedestrians  and  will  slow  down  cars,  as  it  is  
also  a traffic calming device. Even though it is not a raised table it does tend to visually serve as a 
cue to slow down traffic; further, it can be implemented in the entire area for under $150,000. 

 
In closing, Ms. Mory stated that the third item is in regard to the in ground LED system, which 
she displayed photographs. She explained that the  system  goes  across  the  street  and  is  lit  at  
night and are turtle compliant. 

 
Chair Robb said that in  April  2014,  she  provided  the  City  Commission  with  an  article  regarding 
the new crosswalk installed at Las Olas Boulevard. Chair Robb asked if Staff  could  contact 
Monique  Damiano,  City  of  Fort  Lauderdale  spokeswoman,  to  see  how  the  crosswalks   are 
working for them. She also asked about the cost, since Staff is requesting four (4). 

 
Ms. Mory said this feature is huge for pedestrian safety, as it includes a motion sensor, which she 
provided photos. When pedestrians approach the crosswalk, their body motion will set o f f  t he  l i t  
system. She stated that it is an expensive feature, but it further enhances pedestrian safety. In the  
 
City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 6  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 
new plans, there are nine (9) crosswalks that cross A1A; these systems can cost $36,000-$40,000 per 
crosswalk depending on the width of the crosswalk.  To  do  all  of  them  would be  $500,000;  however,  
she  suggested  installing  them  at  crosswalks  most  often  used  crosswalks, i.e. SE 2nd Avenue at the 
main beach parking lot, Hillsboro Boulevard and  A 1A,  the  Brus  Room crossing and just north of  the  
north  beach  pavilion.  Further, Ms. Mory asked for direction since it has not been designed yet. If there 
is a consensus to move forward, Staff would need to get professional services contracts with individuals 
skilled at designing these type systems. 

 
Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney, asked if this supports the language in the CRA plan. 

 
Ms. Mory replied that A1A is a project that is specifically mentioned in the CRA plan. 

 
 

Chair Robb said in regard to the article from April 2014, it was stated  that  the  number  of 
accidents is about 80%  lower  than  at  a  standard  crosswalk;  whereby,  they  are  very  valuable  as 
far as safety is concerned. She stated that a California based traffic safety corporation has done 
crosswalks throughout various cities in the State of Florida and it would be a good idea to at least 
look into four (4) of them in the most critical places. 

 
Vice Chair Ganz agreed. 

 
 

Ms. Mory said the textured crosswalk would cost approximately $ 147,000-$150,000 for all of the 
crosswalks in the project; furthermore, the crosswalks not receiving the lights will still get this 
additional treatment. 

 
Vice Chair Ganz said the four (4) lit  crosswalks  make  sense  and  the  textured  crosswalk  on  all  of 
them would be sufficient. 

 
Mr. Miller said in one of the illustrations, it showed the sign on the side lit up as well and asked if 
that would be included. 

 
Ms. Mory replied that is a function of design; nevertheless, it will all be presented later on for 
consideration. 

 
It was the consensus of the Board to have Staff come back with a proposal and an estimated cost 
for the crosswalks. 

 
Mr. Miller said in regard to the landscaping, one of the options will cost m o r e  t o  i m p l e m e n t ; 
however, it will cost less to maintain. He said the trees and shrubs will be of greater value in the 
long term. 

 
Ms. Mory said Mr. Hoyte recommends the trees and ground cover. She stated that the CRA can maintain 
projects, as it is allowable in the plan; however, CRA's normal operating procedure is to maintain the 
project for a year after completion. Lastly, Ms. Mory said the trees will be irrigated. 

 
Vice Chair Ganz said this will be paid by another entity and the City's investment will be relatively  
City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 7  



Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes May 12, 2015  

GENERAL ITEMS - CONTINUED 
 
small; nonetheless, he feels it will go a long way and will be worthwhile aesthetically. 

 
In response to Mr. Maurodis' question, Ms. Mory replied that there are adequate funds to fund this 
project in this year's budget. 

 
Ms. Battle said her only concern is the type of trees being used, as she does not want to see another 
tree that produces a lot of leaves, i .e. the crepe myrtle. She agreed with the use of palm trees 
because they are easy to keep up with. 

 
MOTION was made by Mr. Miller and seconded by Mr. Rosenzweig to have Staff look into the lights at the four (4) 
crosswalks discussed. 

Yeas:    5 - Ms. Gloria Battle, Mr. Joseph Miller, Mr. Richard Rosenzweig, Vice Chair Bill Ganz 
and Chair Jean Robb 

 
   Nays: 0 

 
BOARD/ADMINISTRATIVE   COMMENTS 

 
Vice Chair Ganz - Beach Violations - Vice Chair Ganz said that at  the  last  City  Commission 
Meeting there were comments made by the public regarding violations  that  were  occurring  on  the 
beach, i.e. littering, smoking,  etc.  With  the  CRA  having  the  community  policing  option,  he  asked  if 
the officers were limited to only road patrol or could they go out on the sand. 

 
Burgess Hanson, City Manager, replied that the officer can leave the CRA district if there is an 
emergency, but the general fund would be charged. As far  as  having  them  patrol  regularly  on  the 
beach, the CRA boundary stops just east of the grass dune;  however,  there  is  a  general  fund 
deputy out there. 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 

 
__________________________ 

        JEAN M. ROBB, CRA CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________            
Samantha Gillyard, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

City of Deerfield Beach Printed on 6/2/2015 Page 8  


	Call To Order and Roll Call
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	BOARD/ADMINISTRATIVE   COMMENTS


